
of the Indonesian Republic as an associate 
member would have implied an expression 
of opinion on its political status which was 
beyond the competence of the Commission, 
despite the fact that there had been no 
intention whatever of deciding upon the 
political issues involved. ECAFE was an 
economic commission concerned solely with 
economic matters and in that field it was 
perfectly competent, without prejudice to 
any political issue, to admit the Indonesian 
Republic as an associate member without the 
right to vote. In fact, a clear precedent had 
been established when the Economic and 
Social Council itself invited the Indonesian 
Republic to participate in the United Nations 
Conference on Trade and Employment, on 
the ground that the Republic was in charge 
of its external commercial relations, and when 
the Indonesian Republic had actually signed 
the final act authenticating the text of the 
Havana charter. In the face of that, it was 
difficult to understand how the admission of 
Indonesia to the deliberations of ECAFE could 
in any way prejudice the interests of the 
metropolitan Powers. The Indian delegation, 
therefore, urged that the Economic and Social 
Council, or even the General Assembly, should 
issue a clear directive to the regional commis­
sions to the effect that there should be no bar 
to the co-operation of any country, irres­
pective of its political status. 

Referring to chapter II, section 3, of the 
Council's report, which drew attention to the 
world food crisis, the representative of India 
felt that there was scope for speedier action 
than had been taken hitherto, and he urged 
in particular the ratification of the internation­
al food agreement. A similar situation existed 
with regard to capital equipment, and, in that 
connexion, Mr. Tata pointed out the tendency 
of exporting nations to supply assistance and 
equipment to Europe in preference to econom­
ically backward and more highly populated 
regions such as Asia. 

The meeting rose at 12 noon. 

FIFTY-NINTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Wednesday, 6 October 1948, at 10.50 a.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chile). 

8. Continuation of the consideration of 
chapter II of the report of the Eco­
nomic and Social Council (A j625) 

Mr. ZuLOAGA (Venezuela), on behalf of his 
delegation, thanked the Secretariat for its 
outstanding report on the Salient Features 
of the World Economic Situation, 1945-1947. 
He felt that the work of the Economic and 
Social Council and its commissions would 

12 

et on a laisse entendre que !'admission de 
celle-ci comme membre associe eut implique 
!'expression d'une opinion sur son statut poli­
tique, ce qui depassait la competence de la 
Commission, cela bien qu'il n'y ait jamais eu 
la moindre intention de prendre parti sur les 
questions politiques en jeu. L'ECAFE est une 
commission economique, chargee uniquement 
de questions economiques, et, dans ce domaine, 
il etait parfaitement de son ressort d'admettre, 
sans que cela efrt aucune signification poli­
tique, la Republique d'Indonesie comme mem­
bre associe sans droit de vote. En fait, un 
precedent net a ete etabli lorsque le Conseil 
economique et social lui-meme a invite Ia 
Republique d'Indonesie a participer a Ia 
Conference des Nations Unies sur le commerce 
et l'emploi, en se fondant sur le fait que la 
Republique a la responsabilite de ses relations 
commerciales exterieures, et lorsque la Repu­
blique d'Indonesie a bel et bien signe 1' Acte 
final authentifiant le texte de la charte de La 
Havane. C'est pourquoi il est difficile de 
comprendre comment !'admission de l'Indo­
nesie aux deliberations de l'ECAFE peut, 
d'une maniere ou d'une autre, porter atteinte 
aux interets des Puissances metropolitaines. 
En consequence, la delegation de l'Inde 
demande instamment que le Conseil econo­
mique et social, ou meme 1' Assemblee generale, 
donne des directives claires aux commissions 
regionales en vue de supprimer toute entrave 
a la cooperation des pays, quel que soit leur 
statut politique. 

Faisant allusion a la section 3 du cha­
pitre II du rapport du Conseil, qui attire 
!'attention sur la crise alimentaire mondiale, 
le representant de l'Inde declare que, a son 
avis, il y aurait lieu d'agir plus rapidement 
qu'on ne l'a fait jusqu'ici, et il demande ins­
tamment, en particulier, la ratification de 
!'accord international sur les produits alimen­
taires. La situation est la meme en ce qui 
concerne l'equipement de premiere necessite, 
et, a ce propos, M. Tata signale la tendance 
des nations exportatrices a fournir des secours 
et du materiel a !'Europe plutot qu'aux regions 
moins evoluees economiquement et a popu­
lation plus nombreuse, telles que I' Asie. 

La seance est levee a midi. 

CINQUANTE-NEUVIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mercredi 6 octobre 1948, a 10 h. 50. 

President: M. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chili). 

8. Suite de l'examen du chapitre II du 
rapport du Conseil economique et 
social ( A/625) 

M. ZuLOAGA (Venezuela) declare que sa 
delegation remercie le Secretariat pour son 
excellent rapport intitule Aspects caracteris­
tiques de la situation economique mondiale de 
1945 a 1947. II estime que le Conseil econo­
mique et social et ses commissions auraient pu 



have been more effective if political consider­
ations had not been injected into purely 
economic problems. It was, he admitted, 
extremely difficult to dissociate politics from 
economics, but he agreed with the represent­
ative of Australia, who had pointed out that 
there might be a middle way between the 
systems of complete communism and absolute 
capitalism. He believed that agreement be­
tween the great blocs, without prejudice to the 
recognition of the fact that differing systems 
existed, would be the best way of averting 
war and the fear of it. 

The Venezuelan delegation was not, however, 
entirely in favour of regarding economic and 
social problems as completely distinct. He 
agreed with the representative of India who 
had advocated the granting of equal priority 
to the questions of the war-devastated areas 
and of the economic development of under­
developed countries. Like the East, Latin 
America contained countries with a low level 
of economic development and consequent social 
backwardness. Economic development alone, 
however, was not sufficient, for there were 
certain countries where a considerable measure 
of industrial development was still accom­
panied by extreme social backwardness. It 
was, in fact, easier to reconstruct a war­
devastated country than to establish stable 
economic foundations in countries where 
powerful economic and political systems were 
keeping the people in slavery, poverty and 
ignorance. A long-term programme of work 
would be needed to bring the less-developed 
countries of Latin America even up to the 
level of the war-devastated areas at the time 
when rehabilitation had been started. The 
Economic and Social Council should, there­
fore, make a special effort in that direction. 
Mr. Zuloaga reserved the right to return to 
that subject, should occasion arise. 

A close connexion existed between social 
and humanitarian factors and the solution 
of economic problems. Wealth must not 
only be produced; it must be properly dis­
tributed. It was deplorable that news of 
good harvests should give rise to fear of finan­
cial panic. The worst kind of fear was the 
fear of abundance in a hungry world. 

Mr. MAGALHAES (Brazil) pointed out that 
the Economic and Social Council, by examin­
ing the basic problems affecting the under­
developed countries, had begun to give shape 
to a certain body of doctrine, on the basis of 
which an international formulation of economic 
policy might eventually become possible. 
That trend was increasingly visible in the 
treatment of the impact of colonialism on 
economic development, the consequences of 
foreign investment and the role of indus­
trialization. Although the areas of agreement 
in the Economic and Social Council had not 

13 

aboutir, dans leurs travaux, a de meilleurs 
resultats s'ils n'avaient pas fait intervenir 
des considerations d'ordre politique dans des 
problemes purement economiques. M. Zuloaga 
admet qu'il est extremement difficile de 
dissocier la politique de l'economie, mais il 
approuve la declaration du representant de 
l'Australie, d'apres laquelle il existerait peut­
etre un moyen terme entre les deux systemes : 
communisme total et capitalisme integral. II 
pense qu'un accord entre les grands blocs 
d'Etats, tout en ne niant pas !'existence de 
systemes differents, serait le meilleur moyen 
d'empecher laguerre et de supprimer la peur 
de la guerre. 

La delegation du Venezuela n'est cependant 
pas disposee a considerer comme absolument 
distincts les problemes economiques et lcs 
problemes sociaux. M. Zuloaga approuve 
le representant de l'lnde qui propose d'accor­
der une egale priorite a la question des regions 
devastees par laguerre eta celle du developpe­
ment economique des pays insuffisamment 
developpes. De meme que !'Orient, I' Amerique 
latine comprend des pays economiquement peu 
developpes et souffrant, par consequent, d'un 
retard dans le domaine social. Le seul develop­
pement economique n'est toutefois pas suffi­
sant, car il existe certains pays dont le develop­
pement industriel considerable est accompagne 
d'un retard extreme en matiere sociale. 11 est, 
en fait, plus fl:!-cile de proceder a la recons­
truction d'un pays devaste par la guerre que 
d'etablir des bases economiques stables dans 
des pays ou des systemes economiques et poli­
tiques puissants maintiennent le peuple dans 
l'esclavage, la pauvrete ct !'ignorance. C'est 
une ceuvre a long terme qu'il sera necessaire 
d'entreprendre pour amcner les pays insuffi­
samment develop pes de I' Amerique latine nc 
serait-ce qu'au niveau auquel se trouvaient lcs 
pays devastes par la guerre a l'epoque ou a 
commence la reconstruction. Le Conseil econo­
mique et social devrait done faire un effort 
tout particulier en ce sens. M. Zuloaga sc 
reserve le droit de revenir sur cette question 
le cas echeant. 

11 existe un lien etroit entre lcs facteurs 
d'ordre social et humanitaire et la solution 
des problemes economiques. 11 importe que les 
richesses soient produites et distribuees de 
fa~on appropriee. Le representant du Vene­
zuela trouve dramatique le fait que l'annonce 
de bonnes recoltes suscite la crainte d'unc 
panique financiere. La pire forme de crainte est 
la peur de l'abondance dans un monde affame. 

M. MAGALHAES (Bresil) fait ressortir que, 
en etudiant les facteurs principaux des pro­
blemes de base relatifs aux pays insuffisam­
ment developpes, le Conseil economique et 
social a commence a donner forme a un certain 
corps de doctrine, sur la base duquel il sera 
possible par la suite de definir une politiquc 
economique internationale. Cette orientation 
apparait sans cesse plus clairement dans Ia 
fa~on dont on examine les effets du colonia­
lisme sur le developpement economique, les 
consequences des investissements a l'etranger 
et le role de !'industrialisation. Bien que 



been broad enough for practical action to be 
taken, the work of that body would be likely 
to encourage international co-operation as a 
substitute for economic pressure. Within 
the Economic and Social Council, three groups 
were still in conflict: those who considered 
that foreign private investment was exploit­
ation and wished to see abrupt change in the 
economic and political structure of the de­
pendent countries; those who saw no evil in 
colonialism or in foreign investment, and those 
who wished to eliminate colonialism but felt 
that while preferring to rely on their own 
natural resources they should confine them­
selves to a more immediate practica4 non­
doctrinal outlook. The Economic and Social 
Council provided a forum for such views, even 
though it had failed to agree upon a clearly 
defined policy in the main fields. 

The Economic and Social Council was faced 
with the problems of finding a correct balance 
between functional and regional activities and 
of allocating United Nations activities and 
resonrees appropriately between the different 
regions concerned. Certain of the specialized 
agencies, including the Food and Agriculture 
Organization and the International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development, had 
recently extended their range outside Europe. 
He noted with satisfaction that their activities 
had been extended, as a result of the Council's 
influence, to Asia and Latin America. 

The report showed progress in co-ordinating 
the economic activities of United Nations 
agencies, particularly those designed to relieve 
the world food crisis. The principal way in 
which the United Nations could help to 
promote economic development and social 
progress, in accordance with the terms of 
Article 55 of the Charter, was to implement 
resolution 139 (VII) of the Economic and 
Social Council relating to the provision of 
technical assistance to Member States. 
Technical training and assistance represented 
one of the most effective, practicable and 
inexpensive means of promoting economic 
development and social progress. Expert 
aid for the improvement of statistical services 
providing technical assistance for the 1950 
census and in the field of social welfare was 
of such tangible benefit to under-developed 
countries that budgetary considerations­
quite laudable in themselves-should not be 
permitted to restrict it. A plan for technical 
assistance similar to that which was being 
developed in connexion with social welfare 
should be worked out. The Brazilian delega­
tion reserved its right to return to that subject 
in greater detail at the appropriate moment. 

14 

l'acoord realise au Conseil economique et soeial 
ne couvre pas un champ suffisamment vaste 
pour permettre la prise de mesures pratiques. 
les travaux du Conseil semblent devoir encou­
rager la cooperation internationale au lieu 
et place des methodes de pression econo­
mique. Au sein du Conseil economique et 
social, trois groupes continuent a s'opposer: 
les uns considerent les investissements prives 
a l'etranger comme un procb:Ie d'exploitation 
et souhaitent voir se produire des transforma­
tions radicales dans la structure economique et 
politique des pays dependants; les autres ne 
sont, en principe, pas hostiles au colonialisme 
et aux investissements a l'etranger, et le troi­
sieme groupe, tout en desirant la. suppression 
du colonialisme, estime, bien qu'il prefere ne 
compter que sur ses propres ressources natu­
relles, qu'il faut se limiter a la poursuite de 
resul.tats pratiques immediats plutot qu'a la. 
doctrine. Meme s'il n'a pas reussi a obtenir 
un a.ccord sur une politique clairemen.t definie 
dans les principaux domaines, le Conseil eco­
nomique et social constitue une tribune pour 
!'expose de ces differents points de vue. 

Le Conseil economique et social cherche a 
realiser un equilibre entre ses activites tech­
niques et ses activites de caractere regional; 
il cherche aussi a repartir de fa«;on appropriee 
les activites et les ressources de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies entre les differentes regions 
interessees. Certaines institutions specialisees 
ont recemment etendu hors d'Europe le champ 
de leur activite = c'est le cas de !'Organisation 
pour !'alimentation et !'agriculture et de la. 
Banque internationale pour la reconstruction 
et le developpement. Le representant du Bresil 
note avec satisfaction que ces organismes ont, 
sous !'influence du Conseil, etendu le champ de 
leurs activites a 1' Asie et a 1' Amerique latine. 

Le rapport montre les progres accomplis en 
matiere de coordination des activites econo­
miques des organes des Nations Unies, en 
particulier de celles qui visent a remedier a la. 
crise alimentaire mondiale. La principale 
mesure que !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
peut prendre pour aider au developpement 
economique et au progres social, conforme­
ment a l' Article 55 de Ia Charte, consiste a 
mettre en vigueur la resolution 139 (VII) du 
Conseil economique et social relative a 
}'assistance technique aux lttats membres. 
La formation et !'assistance technique consti­
tuent l'un des moyens les plus efficaces, les plus 
pratiques et les moins onereux de stimuler le 
developpement economique et le progres 
social. L'assistance d'experts pour !'amelio­
ration des services statistiques, apportant 
I' aide technique necessaire au recensement de 
1950, ainsi que dans le domaine de !'assistance 
sociale, a ete d'un tel profit pour les pays 
insuffisamment developpes qu'il ne faut pas 
admettre qu'on la reduise, sous pretexte de 
compressions budgetaires, d'ailleurs desirables. 
II faudrait mettre au point un programme 
d'assistance technique semblable a celui qui 
est deja en application dans le domaine de 
!'assistance sociale. La delegation du Bresil 
se reserve le droit de revenir sur cette question. 
plus en detaille moment venu. 



Mr. Magalhaes stressed the importance of 
the work of the regional commissions, parti­
cularly where the stimulation of industrial 
development in raw material areas was 
concerned. He hoped that the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development 
would achieve a better balance between the 
claims of reconstruction and development, 
since any attempt to set up arbitrary priorities 
for either aspect would be inconsistent with 
the Bank's statute. It was often impossible 
to draw a clear line of demarcation between 
those two aspects of its work. In the ultimate 
balance, reconstruction and development 
should merge. Each problem should be 
treated on its own merits. That had become 
easier since funds from other sources had 
now become available for reconstruction needs. 

Mr. VIGNES (Argentina) said that his 
country, although not a member of the 
Economic and Social Council, had followed 
its discussions with interest. As President 
Peron had said in a peace message delivered 
in 1947, Argen~ina favoured pacific settlement 
of disputes, and believed that every country 
should be permitted to work out its own 
economic and social system. Argentina's sys­
tem drew its inspiration from the idea that 
economic policy should be based upon the 
well-being of the people, particularly of the 
workers. In Argentina, capital was at the 
service of labour, not labour subordinated to 
capital; the system might be called co-opera­
tive. That policy had led to a rational and 
progressive expansion of the national wealth. 
It was consonant with the pact of Bogota. 

Unfortunately, Argentina had found itself 
unable to adhere to certain other recent 
international draft agreements, because they 
had not given sufficient weight to the need 
for weak countries to strengthen their position 
by becoming industrialized by their own 
efforts. Like all other countries which had 
passed beyond the agrarian stage, Argentina 
needed to retain full freedom to plan its own 
policies and to adopt protection and subsidies 
whenever changing economic conditions 
demanded them. International restrictions 
upon national industrialization should not be 
permitted. Industrialization was the best 
way to expand international trade and encour­
age full employment. The more advanced 
countries had not always properly appreciated 
the need of under-developed countries to 
have recourse to methods of protection which 
they, the industrial countries, had themselves 
frequently used in the course of their develop­
ment. Forgetting that historical fact, those 
countries had later come forward as champions 
of the most unrestricted free trade. A Latin 
American delegation at the Bogota Conference 
had pointed out that it was essential for 
inter-American co-operation that the policies 
enunciated at the Havana Conference should 

15 

M. Margalhaes sooligne !'importance du 
travail des commissions regionales, parti­
culierement en ce qui concerne Ia stimulation 
du developpement industriel dans les regions 
riches en matieres premieres. Le representant 
du Bresil espere que la Banque internationale 
pour la reconstruction et le developpement 
realisera un meilleur equilibre entre la 
reconstruction et le developpement, car toute 
tentative en vue de fixer pour l'un ou l'autre 
de ces deux problemes une priorite arbitraire 
serait incompatible avec les statuts de la 
Banque. 11 est souvent impossible d'etablir 
une ligne de demarcation nette entre ces deux 
aspects de sa tache. En definitive, la reconstruc­
tion et le developpement devront se confondre. 
n faut traiter chaque probleme en tenant 
compte de son importance propre, ce qui est 
devenu plus facile du fait qu'on dispose main­
tenant, pour les besoins de la reconstruction, 
de nouvelles sources de capitaux. 

M. VIGNES (Argentine) declare que son pays, 
quoique n'etant pas membre du Conseil eco­
nomique et social, en a suivi les debats avec 
interet. Ainsi que l'a declare le President 
Peron dans son message de paix de 1947, 
1' Argentine est en faveur du reglement paci­
fique des conflits ; elle estime que tout pays 
doit avoir le droit d'etablir son systeme eco­
nomique et social comme il l'entend. Celui 
qu'elle a adopte s'inspire de l'idee qu'une 
politique economique doit avoir pour objet 
d'assurer le bien-etre de Ia population et, en 
particulier, des travailleurs. En Argentine, le 
capital est au service du travail ; le travail 
n'est pas subordonne au capital : on peut dire 
que c'est la un systeme cooperatif. Cette 
politique, qui a abouti a un developpement 
rationnel et progressif de la richesse nationale. 
est en harmonic avec les dispositions du Pacte 
de Bogota. 

Malheureusement, 1' Argentine s'est trouvee 
dans l'impossibilite de donner son adhesion 
a certains autres projets d'accords inter­
nationaux recents, car ceux-ci ne donnaient 
pas assez d'importance a la necessite dans 
laquelle se trouvent les pays faibles de ren­
forcer leur position en s'industrialisant par 
leurs propres efforts. Comme tous les autres 
pays qui ont depasse le stade de l'economie 
agricole, 1' Argentine a besoin d'une entiere 
liberte qu'elle doit conserver pour pouvoir 
fixer elle-meme sa ligne de conduite et adopter 
une politique de protection et de subventions 
chaque fois que l'exigera !'evolution des condi­
tions economiques. 11 ne devrait pas etre 
permis de restreindre par des mesures inter­
nationales le developpement de l'industrie 
nationale. L'industrialisation est le meilleur 
moyen de developper le commerce interna­
tional et de favoriser le plein emploi. Les 
pays les plus developpes n'ont pas toujours 
apprecie a sa juste valeur la necessite ou se 
trouvent les pays insuffisamment developpes 
de recourir a des methodes de protection que 
les pays industrialises ont eux-memes frequem­
ment employees au cours de leur histoire. 
Oublieux de ce fait historique, ces derniers se 
sont presentes plus tard en champions du 



be considerably altered. At Havana, the 
industrialized countries appeared to have 
joined against the countries whose industrial­
ization was less developed, and, although 
they had admitted in principle their right 
to industrialize, they had impeded all attempts 
to put that idea into practice. 

The reconstruction of countries whose 
economy had been affected by the war was 
proceeding at varying rates, which had given 
rise to a considerable change in traditional 
trade currents. The main result had been a 
shortage of foreign exchange, which had 
adversely affected the stability of currencies 
and slowed down world trade. The financial 
organs set up after the war had not been able 
to solve those problems. 

Mr. Vignes proposed that an international 
monetary conference should be convened as 
soon as possible and that it should include 
all the countries affected. He pointed out 
that Argentina had already signed agreements 
with European countries to aid in the work of 
reconstruction and had granted them consid­
erable credits. That had been done in the 
belief that increased trade would lead to 
better international co-operation. In general 
policy, his country believed in a middle way­
the humanitarian way which took into full 
account the well-being of the workers-be­
tween unrestrained individualism and mate­
rialist collectivism. That would be the funda­
mental idea which would direct his delegation's 
co-operation with the work of the Economic 
and Social Council. 

Mr. THORN (New Zealand) recalled that in 
the Second Committee during the second 
session of the General Assembly he had 
defended the Economic and Social Council 
against the impatient critics who had com­
plained of its lack of achievement ( AfC.2/SR.36 ). 
He had pointed out that the Council was only 
at the threshold of its work and must be allowed 
time to see its problems clearly and to develop 
the means of solving them. During the 
past year the Council had become a much more 
effective and unified body with increased 
competence. He predicted that, granted a 
reasonably helpful spirit and the develop­
ment of a common outlook, the Council in 
future years would be recognized as a fruitful 
agency in the service of every cause which 
would make the world a happier place to live in. 

As he had stated at the 144th plenary meet­
ing of the General Assembly several of the 
outstanding examples of progress achieved 

16 

libre-echange le plus absolu. A Ia Conference 
de Bogota, une delegation sud-americaine a 
fait ressortir que Ia cooperation interameri­
caine exigeait que des modifications appre­
ciables soient apportees a Ia politique definie 
par la Conference de La Havane. II semble 
que, a La Havane, les pays industrialises se 
soient groupes contre ceux dont !'industriali­
sation est moins poussee ; quoique les premiers 
aient admis, en principe, que les seconds 
avaient le droit de s'industrialiser, ils ont fait 
obstacle a toutes les tentatives en vue de mettre 
cette idee en pratique. 

La reconstruction des pays dont l'economie 
a ete atteinte par Ia guerre a suivi des rythmes 
differents, si bien que les courants commer­
ciaux traditionnels ont subi d'appreciables 
changements. La penurie de devises etran­
geres en a ete le resultat principal ; elle a eu 
des effets nefastes sur Ia stabilite des diverses 
monnaies et a ralenti le commerce mondial. 
Les institutions financieres creees a Ia fin de 
la guerre n'ont pas reussi a resoudre ccs 
problemes. 

M. Vignes propose Ia convocation, des que 
possible, d'une conference monetaire inter­
nationale a laquelle tous les pays touches par 
cet etat de choses soient appeles a participer. 
II fait ressortir que 1' Argentine a deja signc 
avec certains pays europeens des accords par 
lesquels elle leur porte assistance dans leur 
travail de reconstruction et qu'elle leur a 
consenti des credits appreciables. Elle l'a fait, 
penetree de l'idee qu'un plus grand volume de 
commerce ameliorera Ia cooperation inter­
nationale. Sur les principes generaux, son pay,.; 
croit en un moyen terme - en une fa<;on de 
voir humaine qui tienne compte du bien-etre 
des travailleurs - se pla<;ant entre l'indivi­
dualisme effrene et le collectivisme mate­
rialiste. En cooperant aux travaux du Conseil 
economique et social, la delegation de !'Argen­
tine s'inspirera de cette idee. 

M. THORN (Nouvelle-Zelande) rappelle que, 
pendant la deuxieme session de l' Assemblec 
generale, il a, a la Deuxieme Commission, 
defendu le Conseil economique et social contre 
les critiques impatients qui se plaignaient que 
le Conseil n'avait guere realise de progres 
(AfC. 2/SR. 36). II avait fait observer alors 
que le Conseil n'en etait qu'au debut de ses 
travaux, qu'on devait lui donner le temps 
necessaire pour se faire une idee precise des 
problemes auxquels il devait faire face et 
pour mettre en action les moyens permettant 
de les resoudre. Au cours de l'annee derniere, 
le Conseil est devenu un organe beaucoup plus 
efficace et plus unifie, et sa competence s'est 
elargie. M. Thorn predit que, si les membres 
du Conseil font preuve d'esprit de cooperation 
et s'ils se rallient graduellement a une concep­
tion commune, on reconnaitra, dans l'avenir, 
que le Conseil est devenu capable de rendre 
des services eminents dans toutes les entre­
p~ises destinees a ameliorer ]e monde oil nous 
VlVOnS. 

Ainsi que l'orateur I' a declare a Ia 144e seance 
pleniere de I' Assemblee generale, Ies progres 
]es plus marquants de !'Organisation des 



by the Uriited: · Nations came . within tile 
economic field covered by chapter II of the 
report of the Economic and Social Council to 
the General Assembly. 

Mr. Thorn felt that there was general 
agreement that the Economic and Social 
Council was not only making a positive 
contribution to the peaceful economic and 
social development of the world, but that it 
was also working out methods of handling 
a multitude of problems with which the Coun­
cil, as well as its commissions, was confronted. 

Turning to the consideration of the various 
subjects discussed in chapter II of the report, 
Mr. Thorn indicated that the Secretariat had 
very thoughtfully provided ~ series of economic 
documents prepared in the course .of the past 
year. He congratulated the Secretariat on 
the scope of its work and on the fact that it 
had been able to achieve so much with a. staff 
heavily preoccupied with. the preliminary 
organizational matters necessary at the 
beginning of the work of any new organ. 

The representa~ive of New Zealan~ pointed 
out that the Department of .EconomwAffairs 
of the Secretariat had so many tasks that it 
was handicapped, both in time and opportun­
ity, to study or perform any one of them 
adequately. Referring to the tremendous. 
responsibility of the Department of Economic 
Affairs in sending experts and preparing for 
each of the numerous conferences in the 
economic field, Mr. Thorn stated that the 
New Zealand delegation held the view that 
experts in economic affairs should be spared 
administrative and or~aniz~ttional task!!. 
Insufficient time was bemg devoted to the 
study and collation of economic material, 
as well as its analysis and effective presenta­
tion. He felt that perhaps too many tasks 
had been assigned to the Secretariat while 
at the same time economies had been expected 
of it. As a result, the Department of 
Economic Affairs of the. Secretariat had been. 
handicapped in producing the kind of economic 
survey which the United Nations was entitled 
to receive. The delegation of New Zealand 
hoped that, in the future, economic surveys 
would contain more analyses and a greater 
presentation of economic tendencies. rather 
than descriptive material on a country-by­
country basis. 

Mr. Thorn pointed out that, in addition to 
serving Member States and their government 
departments, the United Nations Secretariat 
had the broader task of informing public 
opinion and the organs of the Press on the 
economic state of the world. To that end 
economic surveys with more analysis and les~ 
general description were needed. 

The New Zealand delegation wished to 
congratulate the Secretariat on its publication 
entitled : Selected World Economic Indices. 
That publication had presented a highly 
informative picture of world production and 

Nations Unies · ont ete accomplis . dans le 
domaine economique, dont traite le cha­
pitre II dn rapport du Conseil economique et 
social a 1' Assemblee generale. 

Selon M. Thorn, toutle monde est d'accord 
pour reconnattre non seulement que le Conseil 
contribue seriensement a assurer le develop­
pement economique et social du monde dans 
Ia paix, mais qu'il est en train d'elaborer 
des methodes permettant de resoudre un grand 
nombre de problemes qui se dressent devant 
lui et devant ses commissions. 

M. Thorn parle des differents sujets traites 
au chapitre II du rapport et fait observer que 
le Secretariat' a eu !'attention de fournir au 
Conseil un certain nombre de documents eco­
nomiques prepares au cours de l'annee der­
niere. 11 felicite le Secretariat pou,r le travail 
qu'il a accompli avec un personnel qui a ete 
absorbe par les questions d'organisation pre­
liminaire auxquelles doit faire face toutc 
institution qui se trouve au debut de son 
activite. 

Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande 
souligne que les taches auxquelles doit faire 
face le Departement des questions economiques 
du Secretariat sont tellement nombreuses 
qu'il n'a nile temps niles moyens necessaires 
pour les accomplir d'une maniere satisfaisante. 
M. Thorn rappelle que c'est au Departement 
des questions economiques qu'incombe la 
lourde responsabilite d'envoyer des experts 
et de preparer les nombreuses conferences 
dans le domaine economique, et il declare que, 
de l'avis de sa delegation, on ne devrait pas 
astreindre les experts economistes a accomplir 
des taches d'administration et d'organisation. 
Le Secretariat consacre trop peu de temps a la 
centralisation, a l'etude, a !'analyse et a Ia 
presentation de la documentation economique. 
Les taches dont le Secretariat a ete charge 
sont peut-etre trop llombreuses, et, en meme 
temps, on lui demande de reduire ses depenses. 
En consequence, le Departement des questions 
economiques du Secretariat n'a pas ete en 
mesure d'elaborer le genre d'etudes econo­
miques que les Nations Unies etaient en droit 
d'attendre. La delegation de Ia · Nouvelle­
Zelande espere qu'a l'avenir les etudes eco­
nomiques comprendront un plus grand nombre 
d'arialy'ses et comporteront une presentation 
plus detaillee des tendances economiques, plu­
tot qu'une documentation descriptive par 
pays. 

M. Thorn fait observer que le Secretariat 
des Nations Unies n'a pas seulement pour 
fonction de travailler pour les Etats membres 
et pour leurs services gouvernementaux ; 
il a une tache plus etendue, qui consiste a 
tenir !'opinion publique et les organes de 
presse au courant de Ia situation economique 
mondiale. A cette fin, des etudes economiques 
contenant un phis grand nombre d'analyses 
et moins de descriptions generales sont neces­
saires. 

La delegation de Ia Nouvelle-Zelande feli­
cite le Secretariat pour sa publication intitulee 
Recueil d'indices sur l'economie mondiale. Cette 
publication, qui est redigee en termes clairs 
et precis, presente un tableau tres instructif 

17 
!GOO-! 



t~4~ ii,l a :ro~~n,~x: wh,i,ch w~s (;!a,jij]~ reiW.~b.l.0 
l:};pd q\\jckJ,y g~as~ .. 

1\J:r. Thorn. als_q drew: a,ttenti(\1;1 t" tlw 
excellent Survey Q,t (he Econom¥; Situatilm. 
q'flll,, J?rospects. o.f Euro.pe. pre~req hy the 
&e~e:tl\l'iat of the Economic Commission fo;r 
~;u,rop.e. '.fhe l(lilaterial and the conclu,sions 
q~ that survey ha,~ a}ready had a. ~ignificaAt 
and, be~rful effe<;t on i:tl{or:rned eco:no.m~~ 
opinion in the wed.d. 

_.t its first ses,sion, th~ Economic Com:m,is­
S;io.n for ~a, tin America. h:,td dirooted tha.t an 
e~on,omic su,rve)i be. pre-pared for the Latin,­
Arnerici;tn regiq,Q.s ~nd, · tha.t. it fo]J.ow a,s fa:r as 
possi~l€! tJ;w fq:.;m ®d methods. adoJ?ted w t):l~ 
~u,ropea~ sm:vey,. Tha,t was. nQ.~ 0;nly l:J.. 
t:dbute to the. Europ.ea:o, Sl,lrvey but a,lso a 
ve.r:y sep;sible application of the prin,cip~e that 
s.t~tis;tical an,d · economic in.forDJ.ation of an 
int('!rnational c~racter should be presented 
in a standard and comparable form. 

C.mnmenting upqn the heavy bu.rde.n of 
~ql,'~ pla,ced. upon the E.xecu.tive Secretary 
f()r the Econ,OJ;nic. Commission for Latin 
A~erica., 1\iJi'. 1-'l;lm;n poi:o,ted ou1{ ~hat careful 
preparation ~ud ~~::;t:tion o~ a.U the 
probJems involved. i,n a study should be 
U1::tderta~en befo:r:e time limits on the presenta­
tion. of the results were imposed. 

With furthe:r: refe:r;ence to the question of 
eco:o,QJ!l,i,c surveys, the represel).tative of New 
Z~Jiavd, stated that a greater attempt should 
b~ nwde to understand the backgroun{,'l; of 
economic actions in va.rious countFies. of tl;te 
~or.ld. He add~d 'that he referred not to 
di;f;f.erences betwefn; p.~;edominantly . sociaUst: 
and predominantly capitalist economic 
sy,stGUL5, but to t}w different stages G~ econom~c 
d.e~elopment in individu:;tl countries- ~t v{!.rious 
p~J;iods, in, 1jh~j1; h.is;liqzy. 

::(n conl_lexion w.ith the econQmjc recommend­
at.ions of the Economic and Social Co1,1.ncil, 
M;r. Thorn recalled the- action of the sixth, 
session on the s.ubject of full, employment 
[resolu~ion 10.4 (VI)] and expla_ined the reasom> 
for the failu;t;e of the Council to make any 
recommendations in that field during it& 
s~ve.nth session. · 

r:J::bere were, however, economic matters of 
international interest of an urgent nature on 
which the view of the Uni:ted Nations, and 
particularly of the . Economic and Social 
Cquncil, would be welcome. Summing up 
the action of the Economic and Social Council 
in. it~ resolution~ concerning the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development 
[resolution 167 (VII) E] and the Economic 
Commission for. Europe [resolution 143 (VII)] 
wl;ticb. represeqteQ., positiv:e a.n<l progr.essive 
st~ps, Mr. Tl).9~n nevertheless pointed, out. 
that the Economic and Social Council its.clf 
h~Q. gi:ven ·no, dlr.ection as to the possible 

: d.~ la. p~oguc.tion et <J,q oomw~:rc~ ®AS le­
, mt>nde. 

M. Tl.lern attire ~gale:men.t !'attention. de 
la Commission sur l' excclJel).te Etude_ ~r la 
S.it'/JI(J#On et le$ '(JfJTSpecti,Ve$ eco,n,prr:Jti;ques, de 
l' EJt(,rQ![Je l>Xep.art!e p.a:r ~e Secr6:tari.a.t d.e, Ia 
Co.mn;ils~>ion ec_0nornique po.ur l'Europe .. L.a. 
documentation et les conolusions cQnf;enues 
dans cette etude presentent une. gr~nde iiJilpQf­
ta)).ce et ont deja eu un retentisse.ment oerfi:.Un. 
dans les milieu;x qui so)lt aJ.l cov..ra.ut des. 
questiol'\l;l economiques. 

La. Commi.ssion e.cwwroiqu(? pour 1' A~­
riql.\e latine a dedde ... au c0:urs dC: sa premiere 
session, qu'une. etlJ.de ~.onm;nique, se:rait pre.-. 
pan~e po.U:.; les :region~ de I' Arrieriq,l.\e latin~ •. 
etude qui devrait adopt;e:r,, da.n$ la mesq:re dq. 
possibl:e:i~. la forrne et.l€.5 methoqes utilisk,s d&n::t­
l'etude. <;:oncernar1.t l'Europ.e. Cett;e decisioli\ 
n.'est pas, seulement un hommage rendl.\ &, 
l.'etud~ de. la Commi~sion ~conoini:que pou~ 
l'~urope, c'e[it egalemeilt \ln_e application t~s-

' judicieu.se du principe f)elon lequel les. rei);Sei-. 
gnem;en:ts d'ord,re, sta~istiq,u.e . et econom~que 
ayant un caractere mternatro.nal dev:r&,leJ.lt. 
e~re p:t;esent~s d"une fu~on, uniforme. 

, Parlant de Ia lourde tache qui incomb.e au. 
: Secretaire executif de la Commission econo-. 
; mique pour l' Amerique Ia tine, M. Thorn fa.it 
. observer que l'on devra~t proceder a une }?re-
paration minutieuse de chaque etude et a un 
exa,meu des problemes qu'efle souleve avant 
qu,e Q:es limites de te;o1ps soient imposees-
pou,r la presentation de l'etude. · 

Le representant de. la NouveUe-ZeJande 
declare, egalemeut a propos des etudes eco­
nomiql!eS, qu'un plus grand effort d'evrait. 
et;re accompli pour comprendxe les origines 
et les raisoris des. :rn,esures economiques prises 
dans les di:fMrents pays. Il ajoute qu'il ne 
parl:e pas des differences existant entre les. 
systemes ou p:r:edomine l'econornie socialiste 
et ceux ou predomine l'e~onomie capitaliste, 
mais <\u 'il a en vue les divers degres de deve:­
loppement 6.Gonomique, dans ch;;tque pays·., 
au coUl's des differeptes p~riodes de' son' his­
toire. 

A propos des recommandatioi).s fajtes, en 
matiere economique, par le Conseil econoll)ique 
et social, M. Thor!} rappell~ les- mesurett 
prises au cours de la si:xieme session a'Q sujd; 
du plein emploi [resolution 104 (VI')] et 
explique les raisons pour lesquelles le Conseil 
n'a pas ete en mesure de presenter des recom­
mandations dans. ce domaine a:u couxs de, sa 
septieme session. 

II. existe ce-pendant des questions d'ordr~ 
economique d'un interet international et. pr~,. 
senta11t un caractere d'urgence, au sq.jet, 
desquelks iJ serait desirable q»e l'Orga;nisa-:-. 
tion des Nations Unies, et en particulier le 
Conseil economique et social, fasse connai:tre. 
son avis. Faisant un resume des resolutions 
prises par le Conseil economique et social au 
sujet de la Banque internationale pour la 
reconstruction et le developpement [resolu­
tion 167 (VII) E] et de la, Commission econo­
mique pour l'Europe [re!>olu:tion 143 (VU)]1 

resolutions qui, a son avis, presentent 'l!Th 
ca,r~t~re positif et progressif, 1\1. Thorn fait. 

18, 



solution of the immediate economic problems 
facing the world. 

Noting the resolution of the Economic and 
Social Council regarding the organization of 
international teams of experts to provide 
assistance to countries in their economic 
development programmes, Mr. Thorn wel­
comed the decision and expressed the hope 
that countries requesting such assistance 
would receive carefully-chosen, properly-train­
ed experts. He stressed the helpful work 
done by FAO experts on the agricultural 
problems of Poland. 

It was to be hoped that the speci::.lized 
agencies and the United Nations would be 
increasingly able to diffuse, throughout the 
world, methods and techniques which would 
assist countries lacking the necessary expert 
information. 

While all those activities were helpful 
and useful, it was nevertheless true that, up 
to the present, the Economic and Social 
Council had failed to obt&in a deep and wide 
ranging discussion on the economic problem 
confronting the world. 

Mr. Thorn then considered the important 
question of the future of the Economic and 
Employment Commission which had been 
subjected to considerable criticism for its 
fdlure to produce material as a guide to policy 
on present economic problems. Pointing out 
that in many cases the fault did not lie so 
much with the commissions or their mem­
bership as with causes outside their control, 
Mr. Thorn indicated that the Economic and 
Employment Commission was well aware of 
the shortcomings in its organizational structure 
and its relationship to other commissions of 
the Council. In fact, to review those prob­
lems; the Commission had established a 
committee of organization1 which was to 
report with regard to future organization and 
terms of reference. -

The New Zealand delegation felt that the 
time had come to strengthen the Economic 
and Employment Commission. The Commis­
sion mi~pt perhaps be given greater powers and 
be made into a body that could bring to the 
t..ttention of the Economic and Social Council 
serious economic matters requiring discussion, 
suggest method"' of solving economic problems 
and of handling items which were coming 
up on the Council's agenda. 

The New Zealand delegation did not support 
the criticisms which were aimed at the 
structure of the commissions of the Council. 
It was too early in the life of the United 
Nations to pull up the plant to see whether it 

1 Third session of the Economic .and Employment 
Commission, 56th meeting. , 

19 

neanmoins observer que le Conseil economique 
et social n'a pas donne de directives permet­
tant de trouver des solutions aux problemes 
d'ordre economique auxquels le monde doit 
faire face a l'heure actuelle. 

Prenant note de la resolution du Conseil 
economique et social au sujet de !'organisa­
tion d'equipes internationales d'experts desti­
nees a assister les pays dans !'elaboration de 
leur programme de developpement economique, 
M. Thorn exprime sa satisfaction et espere 
que l'on mettra ala disposition des pays ayant 
demande cette assistance des experts soigneu­
sement choisis et formes d'une maniere ade­
quate. n signale l'aide apportee par les. 
experts de l'OAA dans le traitement des pro­
blemes de !'agriculture polonaise. 

II faut esperer que les institutions specia­
lisees et !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
se montreront de plus en plus capables de 
propager les methodes et les techniques 
pouvant servir aux pays ne possedant pas les 
renseignements techniques necessaires. 

Toutes ces fonctions sont tres utiles, mais 
· il n'en est pas moins vrai que. jusqu'a present, 
le Conseil economique et social n'a pas ete 
en mesure d'obtenir une discussion appro­
fondie et complete des problemes economiques 
auxquels le monde doit faire face. 

M. Thorn examine ensuite l'importante 
question de l'avenir de la Commission des 
questions economiques et de I' emploi, Commis­
sion qui a fait l'objet de nombreuses critiques 
parce qu'elle n~a pas fourni une documentation 
qui aurait permis de determiner la ligne de 
conduite a adopter a l'egard des problemes 
economiques actuels. 11 fait remarquer que, 
dans de nombreux cas, la faute n'en est ni 
aux commissions, ni a leur composition, mais 
que cet etat de chases est du a des causes ind~ 
pendantes de leur volonte : il indique que la 
Commission des questions economiques ct de 
l'emploi se rend parfaitement compte des 
imperfections . de son organisation et de ses 
relations avec les autres commissions dtL 
Conseil. D'ailleurs, on a etabli une sou.s­
commission chargee d'examiner les questions 
d'organisation1~ qui doit presenter un rapport 
au sujet de la future organisation et du mandat 
de la Commission. 

La delegation de la Nouvclle-Zelande estime 
que le moment est venu de renforcer Ia, 
Commission des questions economiques et de 
l'emploi et peut-etre de lui donner des pou­
voirs accrus en vue d'en faire un organe qui 
pourrait attirer !'attention du Conseil eco­
nomique et social sur les questions econo­
miques importantes a examiner, proposer des 
methodes pour s'attaquer aux problemes eco­
nomiques et presenter des suggestions rela­
tives aux questions figurant a l'ordre du jour 
du Conseil. 

La d<Hegation de la Nouvelle-ze:lande ne 
s'associe pas aux critiques dirigees contre la 
structure des commissions du Conseil. Elle 
estime que !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
est encore trop jeune pour pouvoir se per~ 

1 Troisieme session de la Commission des questions. 
economiques et de l'emploi, 56e seance. 



had taken root; but his delegation also felt 
that the time would soon come when, as far as 
the Economic and Employment Commission 
was concerned, something should be grafted 
on to make it stronger. 

Turriing to the question of regional 
commissions, Mr. Thorn was of the opinion 
that the United Nations w::..s in a position to 
see how regional commissions were developing 
~nd to appraise their work. The problem of 
functional and regional commissions had been 
made more difficult because of the increase in 
the number of regional offices during the past 
year. The establishment of such offices pre­
sented problems of economy, , administration 
and policy. ' ' .. 

The New Zealand delegation felt that e~:.rly 
consi~eration should be given to the larger 
problem of allocating functions· to central 
and regional bodies respectively. 

Mr. Thorn explained that his preoccupation 
with organizational matters stemmed from 
the belief that the United Nations would not 
obtain satisfactory results until it had devel­
oped· the right kind of machinery to service 
it in the economic field. Consideration should 
also be given to the question of whether the 
United Nations had spread itself out too 
much in setting up organizations which would 
not have any considerable development and 
would only serve to dissipate the financial and 
human resources of the United Nations. 
Examination of the reports of the various 
commissions of the Council revealed a tendency 
to multiply the number of committees and 
regional organizations, and to attempt to 
examine too many problems, so that matters 
which were urgent or required a great deal 
of work did not get done. In addition, there 
was a general reluctance to establish priority. 

It might be advisable during the next year 
to review what had been done and to refrain 
from adding to the activities of ihe United 
lltations in the economic field. 

Mr. Thorn stressed the need for each Mem­
ber State to co-ordinate the work of its 
individual experts so that the same policy 
would be followed by each of its represent­
atives. Without that procedure, co-or­
dination among the organs of the United 
Nations would be impossible. 

Finally Mr. Thorn paid tribute to the hard 
work and constant devotion to duty of the 
Economic Department of the Secretariat. 

Mr. BoGoMOLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that, in reviewing the work 
of the Economic and Social Council for the 
period following the second session of the 
General Assembly, his delegation considered 
it necessary to criticize it, first of all for its 
treatment of questions inextricably tied up 
with the basic aims and principles outlined 
in Article 55 of the United Nations Charter, 
and particularly for the measures it recommend­
ed to promote the economic reconstruction 
of the war-devastated countries of Europe, 
Asia and the Far East. 

mettre d'arracher une plante afin de voir si 
elle a pris racine ; mais il estime que, dans le 
cas de la Commission des questions econo­
miques et de l'emploi, une greffe sera bicntot 
necessaire pour la revigorer. 

Passant a la question des commissions 
regionales, M. Thorn estime que les Nations 
Unies sont a meme de juger leur evolution 
et d'apprecier leur activite. Le probleme des 
commissions techniques ct regionales a cte 
complique par !'augmentation du nombre de 
bureaux regionaux au cours de l'annee der­
niere. L'etablissement de ces bureaux souleve 
des problemes economiques et administratifs, 
et meme des questions de principe. 

La delegation de la Nouvelle-Zelande cstime 
qu'il faudrait examiner, da;ns un bref delai, 
le probleme general de la repartition des 
fonctions entre les organismes centraux et 
regionaux. 

M. Thorn explique que les questions d'orga­
nisation retiennent son attention, car il croit 
que !'Organisation des Nations Unies ne peut 
realiser de progres si elle ne dispose pas d'un 
mecanisme approprie dont elle pourrait se 
servir dans le domaine economique. ll s'agit. 
egalement de determiner si !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies n'a pas pris une ampleur 
excessive en etablissant des organes qui nc 
peuvent guere se developper et qui ne servent 
qu'a gaspiller les ressources financieres ct le 
personnel de !'Organisation. ll ressort des 
rapports des differentes commissions du Conseil 
qu'il y a une tendance a multiplier le nombre 
des commissions et des organisations regio­
nales et a s'attaquer a tellement de problemes 
differents que les questions urgentes ou cellcs 
qui necessitent des efforts prolonges restent 
sans solution. De plus, il y a une ccrtainc 
repugnance a etablir des priorites. 

Au cours de l'annee prochaine, il faudra 
passer en revue ce qui a ete accompli .et main­
tenir l'activite economique de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies dans ses limites actuelles. 

M. Thorn souligne que chaque :£tat membre 
doit coordonner l'activite de ses experts de 
faryon que la meme ligne de conduite soit 
adoptee par tous ses representants. Sinon, il 
ne sera pas possible de coordonner l'activite 
des divers organes des Nations Unies. 

Pour terminer, M. Thorn rend hommage 
aux efforts que le Departement des questions 
economiques du Secretariat n'a cesse de 
deployer avec le plus grand devouement. 

M. BoGOMOLOV (Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques) declare que sa delC­
gation, apres un examen detaille de l'activite 
du Conseil economique et social depuis la 
deuxieme session de l'Assemblee generale, 
juge necessaire d'en faire la critique, princi­
palement en ce qui concerne les questions inti­
mement liees aux buts et aux principes fonda­
mentaux de finis a l' Article 55 de la Charte des 
Nations Unies, et surtout en ce qui concerne les 
mesures destinees a encourager la reconstruc­
tion economique des pays d'Europe, d' Asie 
et d'Extreme-Orient, devastes par Ia guerre. 

20 



During the three years of its existence, the 
Economic and Social Council had had sufficient 
time to work out measures in accordance with 
the provisions of Article 56 of the Charter, 
guiding itself by the principles of self-deter­
mination and the equal rights of peoples. 

Nevertheless, certain facts and · figures 
brought out in the Secretariat publication, 
Salient Features of the World Economic 
Situation 1945-1947, showed, if the figures for 
the United States of America and the Union 
of Soviet Socialist Republics were discounted, 
that world production of vital materials had 
far from reached its pre-war level. That 
publication showed that growing · inflation 
in a number of countries was causing increasing 
difficulties in the economic reconstruction of 
those countries and· was disrupting the 
interchange of commodities between town and 
country; factors which had a pronounced 
effect on the standard of living of the workers 
of those particular countries. 

The economic breakdown in a number of 
countries, and particularly in war-devastated 
countries, had given rise to serious financial 
problems, particularly a scarcity of foreign 
exchange and difficulties in the development 
of foreign trade. War-devastated countries 
were still labouring under difficulties in 
connexion with transport - mainly maritime 
- food, raw materials, and the production 
and import of equipment needed for the 
reconstruction and further development of 
their basic industries. 

With a view to solving the problems of 
the post-war world economy, the Economic 
and Social Council had set up two regional 
commissions : the Economic Commission 
for Europe and the Economic Commission 
for Asia and the Far East. 

His delegation, as at the 143rd plenary 
meeting of the General Assembly, was again 
compelled to observe that both those regional 
Commissions had failed to carry out their 
great task of evolving measures designed 
to promote the speedy economic reconstruction 
of war-devastated countries. IIi fact, they 
had dealt primarily with technical work and 
research which had resulted in resolutions 
but not in action. 

The Soviet Union delegations on ECE and 
ECAFE had made every effort to urge the 
Commissions to work out practical measures 
to promote the development of national 
industries and trade and to strengthen 
economic ties among European and Asiatic 
countries. The USSR delegations were guided 
by the desire to promote the rapid reconstruc­
tion of devastated and economically weakened 
countries and by the wish to satisfy the basic 
vital interests of the peoples of those countries. 

In order to promote a rapid reconstruction 
of agriculture and an improvement of the 
food situation in European countries, the 
delegation of the Soviet Union had proposed 

21 

Depuis trois ans qu'il existe, le Conseil 
economique et social a • eu le temps de mettre 
au point toutes· mesures utiles dans le sens: des 
dispositions de l' Article 56 de la Charte, en 
s'appuyant sur. le principe de l'egalite des 
droits des peuples et de leur droit a disposer 
d'eux-memes. 

Cependant, certains faits et chiHres publics 
par le Secretariat dans Aspects caracteristiques 
de la situation economique mondiale de 1945 
a 1947 montrent, si l'on en excepte les chiHres 
relatifs aux Etats-Unis d'Amerique et a 
l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, 
que la production mondiale de produits essen­
tiels est loin d'avoir atteint le niveau d'avant 
guerre ; citant la meme publication, M. Bogo­
molov souligne que !'inflation grandissante 
dans un certain nombre de pays impose des 
difficultes croissantes a la reconstruction eco­
nomique de ces pays et rompt le circuit normal 
des echanges entre la ville et la campagne, 
facteurs qui affectent profondement le niveau 
de vie des travailleurs de ces pays. 

L'ecroulement economique de certains pays, 
et &urtout des pays devastes par la guerre, a 
fait surgir de serieux problemes financiers, en 
particulier la penurie de devises etrangeres 
et les difficultes dans le developpement du 
commerce exterieur. Les pays devastes par 
la guerre se heurtent toujours a des difficultes 
quant aux transports- surtout les transports 
maritimes - a !'alimentation, aux matieres 
premieres, a la production et a !'importation 
de l'equipement necessaire ala reconstruction 
et au developpement de leurs industries de base. 

Afin de resoudre les problemes economiques 
mondiaux de l'apres-guerre, le Conseil eco­
nomique et social a cree deux commissions 
regionales : la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe et la Commission economique pour 
l'Asie et l'Extreme-Orient (EC:i\FE). 

Ainsi qu'elle l'a declare a Ia 143C seance 
pleniere de l'Assemblee generale, la delegation 
de l'URSS se voit dans !'obligation de consta­
ter, cependant, que ees deux Commissions 
regionales ont echoue dans l'accomplissement 
de leur tache importante : prendre les mesures 
necessaires pour encourager ]a reconstruction 
economique rapide des pays devastes par la 
guerre. En fait, elles se livrent &urtout a des 
travaux techniques et a des recherches qui 
aboutissent a des resolutions et non a des 
mesures concretes. 

Les delegations de l'Union sovietique aupres 
de la CEE et de l'ECAFE ont fait tous leurs 
efforts pour pousser ces Commissions a prendre 
des mesures pratiques propres a stimuler le 
developpement des industries et du commerce 
nationaux, eta renforcer les liens economiques 
qui unissent les pays europeens entre eux et 
les pays asiatiques entre eux. Les delCgations 
de l'URSS etaient inspirees par le desir 
d'encourager la reconstruction rapide des pays 
devastes et economiquement affaiblis, et par 
la volonte de servir les interets vitaux des 
peuples de ces pays. 

Afin de faciliter le relevement rapide de 
!'agriculture et !'amelioration de la situation 
alimentaire dans les pays europeens, la dele­
gation de !'Union sovietique a propose que 



that ECE should help them in the estab- : 
lishment of agricultural credit at a low rate • 
of interest, and ·in the· procurement of agri- • 
cultural products, such as fertilizers, seeds, etc. · 
At the seventh session of the Council, in order 
to promote industry and trade, it had proposed 
that two committees should be set up within 
the framework of ECE: the first to promote 
trade and economic relations between ' 
European countries, and the second to assist 
their agricultural development. It was to 
be regretted that the Economic and Social 
Council at its seventh session had not adopted 
in full those proposals. 

As for the Economic Commission for Asia 
and the Far East, he was compelled to state 
that there were substantial shortcomings 
in its work and organization. It was 
necessary to point out that the decision 
adopted by ECAFE as regards the particip­
ation of Non-Self-Governing Territories in its 
work as associate members was fundamentally 
wrong, in that it placed representatives of 
such territories in a position of complete 
dependence in relation to the metropolitan 
Powers. The Soviet Union delegation, 
wishing to restore a situation that was 
untenable, had proposed both at the second 
session of the General Assembly (103rd 
meeting) and at the sixth session of the 
Economic and Social Council that represent­
atives of Non-Self-Governing Territories 
should be allowed to participate in the work 
of ECAFE as soon as they had applied to 
ECAFE for permission to do so. That 
proposal had been rejected, and the work of 
the Economic Commission for Asia and the 
Far East would therefore be basically defective 
as long as a system of discrimination, which 
prevented Non-Self-Governing Territories 
from direct participation, was allowed to 
continue. 

The USSR delegation had also objected to 
the resolution, adopted by ECAFE at its 
second session, which provided that the 
Commission should consult with the 
International Trade Organization on any 
matter relating to foreign trade. It consid­
ered that such a decision made ECAFE, an 
organ of the United Nations, dependent on a 
specialized agency. Such a procedure was 
incorrect and could not but hinder progress 
in the Commission's work. 

The policy followed by the colonial Powers 
was one of the main causes of the economic 
backwardness of the countries dependent on 
them. For that reason, his delegation had 
urged the Economic Commission for Asia 
and the Far East to work out measures to 
assist the development of national industry, 
including heavy industry, in the countries of 
Asia and the Far East. It had drawn par­
ticular attention to the mistake committed 
by ECAFE in refusing to admit as members 
the Republics of Indonesia and of Viet Nam. 

22 

la CEE aide ces pays a etablir un systeme de 
credits agricoles a faible taux d'interet et .a 
se procurer les produits necessaires a l'agr.i­
culture, tels que graines, engrais, etc. A Ia 
septieme session du Conseil, elle a propose, 
afin de developper l'industrie et le commerce, 
la creation de deux comites dans le cadre 
de la CEE : le premier ayant pour tache 
d'encourager les relations economiques et 
commerciales des pays europeens entre eux, 
le second d'aider ces pays a developper leur 
agriculture. Il est a regretter que le Conseil eco­
nomique et social, lors de sa septieme session, 
n'ait pas adopte entierement ces propositions. 

En ce qui concerne la Commission .econo­
mique pour 1' Asie et !'Extreme-Orient, 
M. Bogomolov se voit dans !'obligation de 
declarer qu'il y a, dansl'activite et la structure 
de cette Commission,· de graves defauts. II 
est necessaire de souligner que la decision .prise 
par l'ECAFE, en ce qui concerne la partici­
pation a ses travaux, en qualite de membres 
correspondants, de territoires non autonomes, 
est erronee dans son principe : en dfd, elle 
met les representants de ccs territoires dans 
unc situation de dependance complete vis­
a-vis de la Puissance metropolitaine. La dele­
gation de !'Union sovietique, de. ireuse de 
remedier a cette situation inadmissible, a 
propose, tant ala deuxieme session de 1' Asscm­
blee generale (Iose seance) qu'a la sixieme 
session du Conseil economiquc et social, que 
des representants des tcrritoires non auto­
names fussent autorises a participer aux tra­
vaux de l'ECAFE directement, des reception 
par l'ECAFE d'une demande d'admission 
emanant des territoires interesses. Cett.e pro­
position a ete rejetee, et l'reuvre de la Commis­
sion economique pour l' Asie et !'Extreme­
Orient sera faussee dans son principe, aussi 
Iongtemps que des mesures discriminatoires 
cmpecheront les territoires non autonomes 
d'y participer directement. 

La delegation de l'URSS est egalement 
opposee a la resolution adoptee par l'ECAFE 
a sa deuxieme session, d'apres laquelle la 
Commission doit consulter !'Organisation inter­
nationale du commerce sur toutes questions 
relatives au commerce exterieur. La dele­
gation de l'Union sovietique estime qu'une 
telle decision place l'ECAFE, organe des 
Nations Unies, sous la dependance d'une 
institution specialisee. Une telle procedure est 
erronee et nc peut qu'empecher le travail de 
la Commission de progresscr. 

La politique des Puissances coloniales est 
l'une des principales causes de l'insuffisance 
de developpemcnt economique dans les pays 
qui dependent de ces Puissances. C'est la 
raison pour laquelle la delegation de l'URSS 
a insiste aupres de la Commission economique 
pour l' Asie et !'Extreme-Orient pour que 
celle-ci mette au point des mcsures destinees 
a favoriser le developpement des industries 
nationales, y compris les industries lourdes, 
dans les pays d'Asie et d'Extreme-Orient. 
Elle a, en particulier, attire !'attention 10ur 
l'erreur que commettait l'ECAFE en re­
fusant d'admettre comme membres les 
Republiques d'Indonesie et du Viet-Nam. 



ln view of those shbrtcotnings in the w6rk 
of the regional econuttlic c~mtnissiotrs, it w~s 
nll.tural to ask what procedure the Economic 
and Social Coundl had in fact ·preferred to 
follow in the discharg-e of the duties imposed 
on it b:y Article 55 of the Charter. . 

The answer to that question was. tll.at the 
!fil:tjo:rity in the :Economic and Social Council 
had shied away from working <:>ut broad 
measures designed to promote the economic 
reconstruction of European and Asiatic 
(!()untties. It had. preferred to abandon its 
rightful duties towards Europe in favour of 
the notoribus Marshall Plan, in spite of the 
fact that the Marshall Plan by-passed th€ 
United Nations, and followed aims which had 
nothifig in common with actual assistance to 
economically under-developed countries. 

As regards the development of foreign 
trade; the delegation of the Soviet Union 
considered that the Economic and Social 
Council had failed to work out measures to 
promote trade among Member States 0n 
mutually advantageous terms, without 
discrimination and without violating the 
principles of equality and equal sovereignty 
of nations. It was well known that some . 
economically powerful countries were purs:uing 
a policy of discrimination towards those 
countries which had not joined the so-called 
llarshall Plan. Instead of attemptillg to 
resist such a violation of the principles of 
equality and sovereignty of nations, the 
Economic and Social Council had assisted the 
expansion. of the economically-powerful na­
tions by setting up the International Trade 
Qrganizati0n. The charter of that organiz­
atign showed that its work was not intended 
to stNngthen the economy of under-developed 
countries, but to ensure tnarkets for commod­
ities exported by industriaily well-developed 
~ountries. 

He recalled that the ITO charter had 
been in process of preparation for two years, 
and that it had finally been adopted after 
lengthy and acrimonious discussion. Httving 
<Jonsidered the charter and reviewed the 
work of the United Nations Conference on 
Trade and Employment, the EconomiG and 
Social Council, at its seventh session, had 
adopted resolution 142 (VII) which noted 
with sMisfaction the report submitted by the 
secretary-general of the Conference. The 
satisfaction, however, had not been general, 
let alone unanimous. 

In the opinion of his delegation, the 
fundamental aim of the Conference as well 
.as that of the future organization was to 
clear the path for the economic expansion of 
the economically highly -developed countries, 
gspecially of the United States, to the 
detriment of the national interests of under­
developed countries. That appeared particu­
larly from articles 12, 16, 17, 18; 21, 25, 26, 
29, 33, 38 trod 41 o£ the ITO charter. 

It was no accident that, as far as he knew, 
rtot one of the countries which had participated 
in the Conference at Havana had as yet 

En raison des insu:t'D:sances relevees ·dafis 
!'activit~ des cmnmissl.tms thmbmiques regio­
nales, bti pclit a juste titre se demander 
queUe procedure .le Conseil ~onomique . et 
SOcial a prefer~ sUiffe pour rerhplir res t'a;ches 
que lui impose 1' Artide 5!i tie la Cha'rte. 

ta reponse-a. Mtte questiofi est que la majo­
rite du Cons·eil ~conomique et soCial a. etude ta. 
fnise nu point de tnesures d'en:seinble destin~es 
a prornouvoir la teconstructlbn ~conoinique de 
l'Europe et d:es_ pays d' Asie, prMerant, eh ce 
qui concerne !'Europe, abandonnei' ses pr~'ro­
g~tives Mgitimes en fa\tellr du _fameux Plan 
Marshall, en d-epit du fait que le Plan M~rshall 
passe par-dessu~ l'Orgahis,ation des Natiofts 
Unies pour atteindre des fins qui n'ont rien. 
~ voir avec l'aide e-ffective alix pays tlont 
l'economie ffit insuffisaminent d~velopp-~e. 

En ce qul. concetM le developpement du 
commerce en~re les pays, la delegation de 
l'Union sovietique estime que le Conseil eco­
nomique et social h'a pas reussi a rnettre sur 
pied des mesures propres a stimuler le com­
merce entre les Etats rilembres, dans des 
conditions qui soient a l'avantage de chacun, 
sans discrimination et sans atteinte auxprin­
cipes d'egalite et d'egale souverainete des 
nations. Chacun sait que quelques pays econo­
tniquement pulssants pratiqueht ufle poli­
tique discrhninatoii'e a l'egard des pays qui 
n'ont pas adMte a ce qu1il est convel}U 
d'appeler le Plan Marshall. Au lieu d'essayer de 
s'opposer a une telle violation des ptincipes de 
l'egalite et de la souverainete des nations, le 
Conseil economique et social a favorise l'ex­
pa.nsion des nations economiquement puis­
sautes en cr€ant !'Organisation int~rnatio­
nale du commerce, La charte de cette organi­
sation montre que son a.ctivit6 a pour but fi~;Jfi 
de fortifier l'economie des pays insuffisaffi­
ment developpes, mais d'assurer d~s trttlteh~s 
au.x produits exportes par les pays fortetrteht 
industrialises. 

Le representant de l'URSS rappelle qtte la 
charte de l'OIC a ete a l'etude 'tlendant deux 
ans tilt a ete finaletnent adoptee aptes de 
longues et apres discussions. Ayant examine 
Ia charte et pMse ~h revue l'activite de 1a 
Conference des Nations Unies sur le cotnttietce 
et l'emploi, le Censeil econornique et social, 
a sa septieme session, a adopte la resolution 142 
(VII) dans laquelle il prtmd acte avec satis­
faction du rapport vresente par le secretaire 
general de la Conf€renee. Toutefois, la satis­
faction n'a pas ete generale, et tlncore moins 
unanime. 

La delegation de !'Union sovietique estirhe 
que le but essentiel de la Conference et de la 
future organisation est de preparer les voies a 
l'expartsion economique des pay's dont l'ec<>­
nomie est tres developpee, en particuliet les 
Etats-Unis, au detriment des interets natio­
naux des pays insttffisarilment d~veloppes. 
Cela ressort tout pllrticulierement des articles 
12, 16; 17, IS, 21, 25, 26, 29, 38, 8S et 41 de 
Ia charte de l10IC. 

Ce n'est pas par hasard que, pour autant 
que :M. Bogomolov le sache, aucu:ri des pays 
qui ont partidpe a Ia Conference de La Havane 

23 



ratified the ITO. ch8J.'ter, much. though its 
ratificati9~ .~as desir~d by certain circles in 
the United Sta~es which had sponsored the 
creation of the organization. 

The USSR, delegation believe(,} that foreign 
trade between States had to be conducted on 
the basis of respect for the interests of peoples 
and of observance of the principle of mutual 
respect for sovereignty, whether the <;ountries 
concerned were large or small. It was the 
duty of the Economic and Social Council to 
elaborate methods for the developmegt of 
foreign trade which would exclude all 
possibility of discrimination, particularly in 
the case of economic relations between 
powerful States and less powerful ones. The 
inadequacy of the Economic and Social 
Council's efforts in that direction meant that 
the Council had acted against the interests of 
industrially under-developed countries and 
of countries which had suffered from 
occupation and war. The Geneva and 
Havana Conferences on Trade and Employ­
ment had taken place in conditions of pressure 
exerted by certain great Powers on other 
States. The ITO charter was unfair to the 
smaller countries on questions of tariff policy 
and imports. It favoured the interests of 
the larger countries and imposed a regime 
of discrimination towards non-members of 
the ITO, thus undermining the future 
development of trade and possibly leading 
to its general reduction. 

His delegation also felt that the Economic 
and Social Council had adopted a wrong 
attitude towards the question of the activities 
of the International Bank and the Inter­
national Monetary Fund by failing to prevent 
those organizations from introducing a 
discriminatory policy towards some of its 
members. The;! agreement concluded between 
the Council and the International Bank and 
International Monetary Fund at the fifth 
session of the Council was inconsistent with 
Article 58. of the United Nations Charter. 
As a result of that agreement, the United 
Nations had lost the right to make 
recommendations to the International. Bank 
and the International Monetary Fund in 
respect of their credit policies, thus allowing 
them full freedom in that field. The accounts 
of the International Bank showed that it 
had granted credits to France, the Netherlands, 
Denmark and Luxembourg, countries which 
participated in the Marshall Plan. On the 
other hand, the Bank had not granted credits 
to any of its Eastern European members, 
despite the fact that some of them, notably 
Czechoslovakia and Poland, had put in 
requests for credits. It was evident therefore 
that the Bank was carrying out a policy of 
discrimination against some of its members 
and that political factors rather than business 
considerations determined the Bank's actions. 
Mr. Bogomolov pointed out that, according 
to the charter of the International Bank, 
only economic factors could determine its 
decisions on business matters; the Bank 

n'a encore. ratifie la charte de l'OI~, bien que 
cette. ratification soit fortement desire~ par 
certaiJ1~ -milieux des 15tats~Ul}is, qui ont pre­
side a la c:reation de l'orgamsation. 

La deiegation de l'URSS est convaincue que 
le commerce exterieur entre les Etats doit 
etre effectue sur la base du respect des interets 
des peuples et de !'observation du principe 
de la souverainete de chacun, sans tenir 
compte de !'importance des pays consideres. 
Elle estime que le . C~:mseil economique et 
social a le devoir d'elaborer des methodes de 
developpement du commerce exterieur qui 
excluraient toute possibilit~ de discrimination, 
en particulier <:lans le cas des relations entre des 
Etats puissants · et d'a;utres qui le sont moins. 
L'insuffisance des efforts du Conseil econo­
mique et social dans ce seris signifie que lc 
Conseil a agi a l'encontre des interets des 
pays insuffisamment developpes au point de 
vue industriel et de ceux qui ont souffert de 
!'occupation et de Ia guerre. Les Conferences 
sur le commerce et l'emploi ont eu lieu, a La 
Havane et a Geneve, dans des conditions de 
pression exercee par certaines grandes Puis­
sances sur d'autres Etats. La charte de 
l'OIC est inequitable a l'egard des pays de 
moindre importance, en ce qui concerne Jes 
tarifs douaniers et les importations. Elle favo­
rise les interets des grands pays et impose un 
regime de discrimination a l'egard des pays qui 
ne sont pas membres de l'OIC ; elle sape ainsi 
le developpement futur du commerce et 
peut avoir pour consequence sa reduction 
general e. 

De meme, Ia delegation de l'URSS estime 
que le Conseil economique et social a adopte, 
sur la question de l'activite de Ia Banque inter­
nationale et du Fonds monetaire international, 
une attitude nefaste, . car il n'a pas reussi a 
empecher ces organisations d'introduire une 
politique de discrimination a l'egard de cer­
tains de ses membres. L'accord conclu a Ia 
cinquieme session du Conseil entre le Conseil, 
d'une part, et Ia Banque internationale et le 
Fonds mom!taire international, d'autre part, 
est incompatible avec 1' Article 58 de Ia Charte 
des Nations Unies. Cet accord a eu pour resul­
tat de faire perdre a !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies son droit de faire des recommandations a 
la Banque internationale et au Fonds mone­
taire international, en ce qui concerne leur 
politique de credit, et leur a ainsi donne toute 
latitude dans ce domaine. La comptabilite de Ia 
Ban que internationale montre que cette Ban que 
a accorde des credits a Ia France, aux Pays-Bas, 
au Danemark et au Luxembourg, pays qui 
participent au Plan Marshall. D'autre part, Ia 
Banque n'a accorde de credits a aucun de ses 
membres de I' Europe orientale, bien que certains 
d'entre eux, notamment Ia Tchecoslovaquie et 
la Pologne, aient demande ces credits. II est 
done evident que Ia Banque poursuit une poli­
tique de discrimination contre certains de ses 
membres et que ses actions sont determinees 
par des facteurs politiques plutot que par des 
considerations d'affaires. M. Bogomolov sou­
Jigne que, selon la charte de Ia Banque inter­
nationale, les seuls facteurs. susceptibles de 
determiner ses decisions sur des questions 

24 



had, therefore, violated , its own , charter. 

A further proof of the political bias of the 
International Bank was the f~ct that .it had 
granted to the Netherlands a.· credit . of 
195 million dollars at a time "'hen the 
Netherlands were fully engaged in war against 
Indonesia. Funds of the InternationaL Bank 
to the sum of some 3,000 million .dollars were 
listed in the report of the sixteen States 
participating in the Marshall P~an ap1ong the 
funds mtended for the realization of the Plan. 
From a number of statements. in the United 
States financial Press it was evident that the 
International Bank was prepared to make 
loans for purposes connected with the Marshall 
Plan. 

By placing itself in the service of the 
Marshall Plan, the Bank had undertaken to 
support it also in so far &.s it favoured the 
reconstruction of Western Germany's war 
potential. The Vice-Pt:esident of the Bank 
had been reported by the Press to have stated 
that he recognized the need for a revival of 
German economy and particulaly of the 
Ruhr. All those facts showed that 'the 
Economic and Socia} Council, by concluding 
an agreement inconsistent with the principles 
of the charter, had enabled the International 
Bank to carry out a politically tendentious 
and discriminatory policy with reg&.rd to credits. 

Mr. Bogomolov recalled that Mr. Vyshinsky, 
speaking at the 143rd plenary meeting of 
the General Assembly, had pointed out that 
although the Marshall Plan by-passed the 
United Nations, the economic organs of the 
United Nations regarded its realization· as 
their most important task. It was not 
accidental that in his report to the Genetal 
Assembly the Secretary-General of the United 
Nations represented the Marshall Plan as a 
promising programme for the restoration of 
the economic and political stability of Western 
Europe. The USSR delegations to the 
economic organs of the United Nations had 
repeatedly criticized the Marshall Plan and 
drawn attention to its economic inconsistency 
and its aggressive character, which threatened 
the independence of countries which regarded 
the Plan as a basis for the restoration of their 
economic welfare. 

As early as the summer of 1947, at the Paris 
conference of the three Foreign Ministers, 
Mr. Molotov had criticized the Plan. In that 
connexion, he had spoken of two forms of 
international co-operation, one of which was 
based on the development of political and 
economic relations between countries of equal 
rights, while the other consisted in the domin­
ation of certain countries by others, with 
the result that the former were placed in the 
position of vassal States. 

His delegation believed that the Marshall 
Plan belonged to the second category described 
above. It considered the Plan to be harmful 
to the cause of the economic reconstruction 
of European countries and to the strengthening 
of mutual help and friendly relations between 
the peace-loving nations. ' 

d~a:(:faires sont les facteurs ~conomiques ;, lc 
Bapque a par consequent viole sa propre charte. 

On trouve .une r"utre preuve du parti pris 
politique. de la ~auque internationale dans le 
fait qu'elle a accorde aux Pays-Bas un credit 
de 195 millions de dollars, au moment ou les 
Pays-Bas etaient pleinement engages dans 1a 
guerre cpntre l'Indonesie. Des fonds de la 
Banque internationa]e~ atteignant quelque 
trois milliards de dollars, ont ete partes, au 
;rapport de!? seize pays participant au Plan 
MarshP.ll, parmi les fonds destines ala realisa­
tion du Plan. Un certain nombre de declara­
tions de Ia presse financiere des :mtats-Unis 
montrent clairement que la Banque interna­
tionale est prete a faire des avances de fonds 
pour des besoins lies au Plan Marshall. 

En se pla~ant au service du Plan Marshall, 
la Banque a entrepris de l'appuyer aussi dans 
la mesure ou ce Plan favorise la reconstruction 
du potentiel de guerre de l'Allemagne occiden­
tale. Selon la presse, le Vice-President de 1a 
Banque a declare qu'il reconnaissait Ia neces­
site du relevement econorriique de l'AUemagne, 
et particulierement de Ia Ruhr. Taus ces faits 
montrent que le Conseil economi'\ue et SO<'ial, 
en concluant un accord incompatible avec lel-' 
principes de la Charte, a permis a la Banquc 
internationale de pratiquer une politiquc 
tendancieuse et discriminatoire en ce qui 
concerne les credits. 

M. Bogomo1ov rappelle que, parlant a Ia 143e 
seance pleniere de !'Assemble~ generale, M. Vy­
chinsky a indique que, bien que le Plan :Mar­
shall opere en dehors de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies, les organes economiques de 
cette Organisation considerent sa realisation 
comme leur tache Ia plus importa.nte. Ce n'est 
pas par hasardque, dans son rapport a l'Assem­
biee generale, 1e Secretaire general de !'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies a decrit le Plan 
Marshall comme un programme prometteur 
pour la restauration de la stabilite economique 
et politique de !'Europe occidentale. Les dele­
gations de l'URSS aupres des organism~" 
economiques de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies ont a maintes reprises critique le Plan 
Marshall et attire ]'attention sur son incohe­
rence economique et son caractere agressif 
qui menacent l'independance des pays qui 
considerent le Plan comme une base pour la 
restauration de leur bien-etre economique. 

Des l'ete 1947, a la Conference des trois 
Ministres des Affaires etrangeres, qui s'est 
tenue a Paris, M. Molotov a critique le Plan. 
A ce propos, il a parle des deux formes de 
cooperation internationale ; l'une d'elles "est 
basee sur le developpement des relations poli-
1iques et economiques entre des pays jouissant 
de droits egaux, tandis que ~·autre consistc 
en Ia domination de certains pays par d'autres 
et a pour resultat de mettre les premiers dans 
la position d'Etats vassaux. 

25 

La delegation de l'Union sovietique est 
convaincue que le Plan Marshall appartient 
a la seconde de ces categories. Elle considere 
que le Plan est nuisible a Ia cause de Ia 
reconstruction economique des pays europeens 
et au renforcement de l'aide mutuelle et des 
relations amicales entre les pays epris de paix. 



Only a little over a ye11r had passed since 
the summe'r of 1947, bu:t the negative effects 
·(}t the support of the Marshall Plan by a 
number of Eurol?ean Stat_es. could already 
be obser~d. Without w1shmg to repeat 
its opinion regarding the harmfulness of the 
Plan, the USSR delegation wished to cite a 
·few examples illustrating the accuracy of 
that opinion. 

After quoting from an article by Mr. James 
Cleary, special assistant to the director 
.of the Economic Co-operation Administration, 
in the Commerce and Finance Ckronide 
of 22 July 1948, Mr. Bogomolo'V pointed 
.out that by forcing the dolla·r upon the 
European markets as the standard unit of 
world currency, the United States Government 
Was causing acute difficulties in the countries 
of Europe. 

A list of the duties of the Administration 
contained in the same article made it clear 
that the Marshall Plan forced certain European 
countries to discriminate against other 
European countries in the field of foreign 
trade as well as to compel them to accept 
deliveries of goods which could not find a 
market in the United States, instead of 
supplying equipment of which Europe was in 
urgent need. 

From a further passage in the article, in 
which the author stated that the utilization 
of Marshall Plan supplies was designed to 
create a barrier between Western Europe and 
the USSR, it was obvious that the American 
administrators of European reconstruction 
intended not only to push their way into 
European economy but also to force their 
own ideology on the States of Europe. There 
could be no doubt of the fact that all those 
plans of so-called co-operation were an 
e:xpression of the mercenary interests of 
big business circles in the United States, 
which had obtained many thousand millions 
of dollars as a result of the war and hoped to 
continue their pursuit of profits under peace­
time conditions. 

There was nothing surprising in the fact 
that those plans for the economic enslavement 
of countries devastated by the war were bound 
up with the military plans of the same reaction­
ary circles. Mr. Cleary's article had contained 
a further statement to the effect that the 
Economic Co·operation Administration was 
to negotiate the purchase of strategic materials 
from participating States and territories 
dependent on them, and to use patt of its 
funds to increase deliveries of strategic mate­
rials. The article had also stated that the 
Administration should carry out negotiations 
regarding the maintenance in Germany of 
certain factories earmarked for dismantling as 
reparations. It was clear that the point 
at issue was the preservation of the war indus­
tries in the Ruhr. 

Such unconcealed intentions to maintain 
and develop the German economic and war 
potential were the most striking examples of 
the aggressive plans which were the inevitl'lble 

A p~ine plus d~un an s'est ecoule d~puis I•ete 
1947, mais les effets negatifs du soutien 
accorde au Plan Mai!Shall par un oertain 
nombre de pays europeens se martifestoot 
deja. La delegatitm de l'URSS ne veut Pll.'> 
repeter stm opinion en M q'lli co.ncerne la nooi· 
vite du Plan, ml\is elle desire cependent citer 
quelques exemples illustrant le bien ... fonde de 
cette bpinion. 

Citant un article de M. James Cleary, 
adjoint particulier llll Directeur de l; Adminis­
tration de cooperation economique, par'U dans 
le Commerce and Finance Chronicle du 22 juillet 
1948, M. Bogomolov souligne qu'en imposant 
sur les marches europeens le dollar en tant 
qu'unite de mesure des devises mondiales le 
Gouvernement des :E:tats-Unis d'Amerique a 
cause de graves difficultes aux pays de !''Eu­
rope. 

Une liste des devoirs de !'Administration. 
contcnue dans le meme article, montre claire~ 
ment que le Plan Marshall oblige certains 
pays de l'Europe a une discrimination a 
l'egard d'autres pays d'Europe dans le domaine 
du commerce exte:rieur et les oblige a accepter 
des marchandises qui ne peuvent trouver 
preneur aux ~tats-Unis, au lieu de fournir un 
equipement dont l'Europe a un pressant 
besoin. 

Un autre passage de cet article, ou !'auteur 
declare que !'utilisation des fournitures du 
Plan Marshall a pour but d'elever une barrierc 
entre !'Europe occidentale et l'URSS, montre 
clairement que les administrateurs americains 
de la reconstruction europeenne ont !'inten­
tion non seulement de se frayer un chemin 
dans l'economie europeenne, mais encore 
d'imposer leur propre ideologie aux Etats de 
rEuror.e. On ne peut douter que tous ces plans 
de pretenduc cooperation soient !'expression 
des interets mercantiles des cercles capita­
listes des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, qui ont 
realise des benefices se chiffrant par milliard:o 
de dollars, par suite de Ia guerre, et esperent 
continuer leur course au profit en temps de 
paix. 

11 n'est pas surprenant que ces plans d'asser­
vissement economique des pays devastes par 
la guerre soient lies au:l!.. plans militaires des 
memes cercles reactionnaires. Varticle de 
M. Cleary contient d'autres declarations disant 
que I' Administration de ct:>operation econo­
mique devait negocier l'achat de matieres 
premieres d'interet strategique aux pays parti­
cipants et aux territoires qui en dependent et 
qu'elle devait, en outre, utiliser une partie de 
ses fonds pour accroitre la fourniture de 
matieres premieres d'interet strategique. Cet 
article declare egalement que 1' Administration 
doit entreprendre des negociations concernant 
le maintien en Allernagne de certaines usines 
qui avaient ete marquees pour Je dernontage 
au titre des reparations. 11 est clair que ce qui 
est en jeu, c'est la preservation des industries 
de guerre de la Ruhr. 

Des intentions si peu dissirnulees de main­
tenir et de developper le potentiel econornique 
et militaire de 1' Allemagne constituent l'exem­
ple le plus frappant des plans d'agression qui 

26 



.eomplement of the Marshall Plan. The Plan · 
disrupted the peaceful co-operation of the · 
peoples of Europe; that most indispensable 
condition of speedy economic recovery in the 
post-waT period. Its implications caused the 
.greatest anxiety among the masses of the 
people of Europe, who had so recently gone 
through six terrible years of war. 

One year's experience of the Marshall Plan 
had been sufficient to show that, instead of 
contributing towards the economic recovery 
of all the countries of Europe, the Plan aimed 
a.t helping only those countries which ex­
pressed their willingness to subordinate their 
economy to its reactionary political purposes, 
including the restoration of Germany's eco­
nomic and war potential. 

Bilateral agreements concluded between 
the United States and the countries of Western 
Europe were concrete proof of United States 
interference in the domestic affa:irs of States 
participating in the Plan, as well as of the 
desire of the United States to achieve mastery 
over those States. Under the terms of those 
agreements, the countries concerned assumed 
the obligation to adapt their economy to the 
interests of the United States at the expense 
of their own national interests, for instance, in 
exporting to the United States some goods 
in short supply in that country. Moreover, 
provisions to be found in some of those agree· 
ments opened the way to unrestricted infiltra­
tion of American capital into the countries 
of Western Europe. Such provisions were 
obviously inconsistent with the real interests 
of those countries and might lead to their 
full dependence on American capital. Lastly, 
under the terms of the bilateral agreements, 
the Marshall Plan countries were placed under 
obligation to submit to the United States 
Government any information that might be 
required, which reduced their position to that 
of Non-Self-Governing or Trust Territories. 

Mr. Bogomo1ov stated that the examples he 
had cited were by no means an exhaustive 
list of the obligations assumed by the Euro­
pean signatories of such agreements. They 
would, however, suffice to indicate how 
sovereign rights were reduced to nought by 
the so-called Marshall Plan. 

A fact to be noted was that under the 
'Marshall Plan the United States would supply 
the countries of Western Europe not with 
such goods as were needed for the economic 
reconstruction and independence of those 
countries, but primarily with goods likely 
to satisfy demands of an immediate and 
temporary character. The Marshall Plan was 
thus designed to keep the economy of Western 
European countries in a state of dependence 
for the longest possible period. He quoted 
statements made in the French Chamber 
.of Deputies, as well as articles appearing in 
F:ench and British newspapers, to support 
h1s remarks. 

Turning to the Salient Featwres of the World 
Economic Situation. 1945-1947, prepared by 
the United Nations Secretariat, he stated that 

sont le complement inevitable du Plan Mar­
shall. Ce Plan detruit la cooperation pacifique 
des peuples de !'Europe, condition abso.lu­
ment indispensable d'un relevement econo­
mique rapide dans Ia periode d'apres guerre. 
Ses consequences causent la plus grande inquie­
tude parmi la masse des peuples de l'Europe 
qui ont recemment subi six terribles annees de 
guerre. 

Une annee d'experience du Plan Marshall a 
suffi a montrer que., au lieu de contribuer au 
relevement economique de tous les pays de 
l'Europe, le Plan vise a aider seulement les 
pays qui se sont declanfs prets a subordonner 
leur economic aux buts politiques reaction­
naires de ce Plan, y compris ]a restauration du 
potentiel economique et militaire de 1' Alle­
magne. 

Des accords bilateraux. conclus entre les 
~tats-Unis et 1es pays de !'Europe occidentale 
constituent une preuve concrete de !'ingerence 
des :~£tats-Unis dans les affaires interieures des 
:Etats qui participent au Plan et de leur desir 
de realiser la domination de ces :Etats. Aux 
termes de ces accords, les pays interesses 
acceptent !'obligation d'adapter leur ecooomie 
aux interets des Etats· Unis aux depens de 
leurs interets nationaux propres, par exemple 
en exportant aux Etats-Unis des denrees dont 
ce pays est a court. En outre, lcs dispositions 
qu'on trouve dans certains de ces accords 
ouvrent la voie a !'infiltration illimitee des 
capitaux americains dans les pays de l'Europe 
occidentale. De telles dispositions sont evidem­
ment incompatibles avec les interets reels de 
ces pays et peuvent conduirc ales faire entie~ 
rement dependre des capitaux americains. En 
outre, aux termes des accords bilateraux, les 
pays participant au Plan Marshall se trouvent 
dans !'obligation de fournir au Gouvernement 
des Etats-Unis toutes informations demandees, 
ce qui reduit leur position a celle de territoires 
non autonomes ou sous tutelle. 

M. Bogomolov declare que Ies e:xemples 
qu'il a cites ne constituent en aucune fa~on 
une liste complete des obligations assum~es 
par les signataires europeens de ces accords. 
Cependant, ils suffiront a indiquer a quel point 
les droits souverains sont reduits a neant par 
ce qu'on appelle le Plan Marshall. 

11 faut noter que, d'apres le Plan Marshall 
les Etats-Unis fourniront aux pays de l'Europ; 
occidentale non pas les marchandises neces­
saires a la reconstruction economique et a 
l'independance de ces pays, mais, avant tout, 
des marchandises susceptibles de satisfaire 
des besoins d'un caractere immediat et tempo­
raire. Ainsi, le Plan Marshall est destine a 
maintenir l'economie des pays de !'Europe 
occidentale dans un etat de dependance, et 
cela pendant la plus longue periode possible. 
M. Bogomolov cite a l'appui de ses remarques 
des declarations faites a la Chambre des 
Deputes, a Paris, et des articles par-us dans la 
presse franc;aise et britannique. 

Passant au rapport intitule Aspects caracu­
ristiques de la situation economique mondiale de 
1945 a 1947, etabli par le Secretariat de 

27 



the report was of some interest inasmuch as 
it conbiined inl'ormation on the· basis of 
which the degree of economic reconstruction 
and develbpment of the countries of the world 
after the Second World War could be judged. 
It was clear from the report that the unequal 
character of the economic development of the 
capitalist countries was one of the basic 
features of the economy of those countries. 
That unequal character had been increased 
after the Second World War as a result of the 
fact some countries had been devastated by 
the war and by enemy occupation, while 
others had been in a position to raise their 
le-yel of production to a considerable extent 
and to exert economic pressure on the countries 
in the first group. 

Facts cited in the report led to the conclusion 
that economic reconstruction in a number of 
Western European countries was proceeding 
very slowly. Foreign trade was not devel­
oping normally and was also characterized 
by instability. 

One of the main defects of the report was 
the fact that it made no reference to the eco­
nomic position, level ofproduction and economic 
tendencies of Non-Self-Governing Territories. 
Moreover, the report devoted undue attention 
to the alleged responsibility of the United 
States for the economic development of other 
countries, a responsibility which was purely 
the invention of the authors of the report. 
It was necessary to draw the authors' attention 
to the fact that some of their statements 
in that connexion were incorrect and tenden­
tious. The USSR wished to make it clear 
that it believed to be false statements regarding 
the exceptional significance of the United 
States in the work of European reconstruction 
and the dependence of the prosperity of 
Europe on the prosperity of the United 
States. 

In view of the fact that the report contained 
no reference to the economic development of 
his own country, the representative of the 
Soviet Union on the Economic and Social 
Council had given detailed information on 
the post-war progress of Soviet socialist 
economy. Mr. Bogomolov stated that he 
would cite a few further facts characterizing 
the degree of economic reconstruction in the 
USSR in the post-war period. 

According to the five-year plan for 1946-
to 1950, the total industrial production of the 
Soviet Union was to rise by 48 per cent in 
1950, as compared to 1940. The level of 
agricultural production was to rise by 27 per 
cent in 1950, as compared to 1940. The level 
of national income in 1950 was to exceed the 
pre-war level by over 30 per cent. The target 
for the overall industrial production of the 
whole year 1947 had been exceeded by 3.5 
per cent and of the first six months of 1948 by 
!J per cent. The amount of overall production 
in the second quarter of 1948 exceeded that 
of the second quarter of 1947 by 24 per cent. 

In the field of agriculture, spring sowing 

!'Organisation des Nations Unies, :M. Bogo­
molov indique que cette etude presente tin 
interet dans Ia mesure ou elle contient des 
informations permettant de juger du degre de 
reconstruction economique et de developpe· 
ment atteint par les pays du monde apres Ia 
deuxieme guerre mondiale. Ce rapport montre 
clairement que le caractere inegal du develop­
pement des pays capitalistes est un trait 
essentiel de l'economie de ces pays. Ce carac­
tere inegal s'est accru. apres Ia deuxieme guerre 
mondiale en raison du fait que certains pays 
ont ete devastes par la guerre et par !'occupa­
tion ennemie, alors que d'autres se sont trouves 
en mesure d'elever le niveau de leur production 
a un point considerable et d'exercer une pres­
sion economique sur les pays du premier groupe. 

Les faits cites dans ce document permettent 
de conclure que, dans un grand nombre de 
pays de !'Europe occidentale, Ia reconstruc­
tiou economique s'effectue tres lentement. 
Le commerce exterieur ne se developpe pas 
normalement et, en outre, il est caracterise 
par l'instabilite. 

L'un des defauts essentiels du document 
reside dans le fait qu'il n'est fait aucunc 
allusion a la position economique, au niveau 
de production et aux tendances economi­
ques des territoires non autonomes. En 
outre, le meme rapport apporte une attention 
e:xageree a la pretendue responsabilite des 
:etats-Unis en ce qui concerne le developpe­
ment economique d'autres pays, responsa­
bilite qui n'existe que dans l'imagination des 
auteurs de ce document. II est necessaire 
d'attirer !'attention des auteurs sur le fait que 
certaines de leurs declarations a ce propos 
sont incorrectes et tendancieuses. L'URSS 
tient a preciser qu'elle considere comme fausses 
les declarations concernant !'importance 
exceptionnelle de la participation des :£tats­
Unis a Ia reconstruction europeenne et la 
fac;on dont !'Europe depend, pour sa prosperitc, 
de la prosperite des Etats-Unis. 

Etant donne que le rapport ne contient 
aucune allusion au developpement econo­
mique de son pays, le representant de !'Union 
sovietique au Conseil economique et social a 
donne des informations detaillees sur les 
progres d'apres guerre de l'economie de ce 
pays. M. Bogomolov citera quelques autres 
faits significatifs montrant le niveau atteint 
par la reconstruction economique en URSS 
dans la periode de l'apres-guerre. 

Selon le plan quinquennal pour 1946-1950, 
la production industrielle totale de !'Union 
sovietique doit augmenter de 48 pour 100 en 
1950 par rapport a 1940. Le niveau de Ia 
production agricole do it augmenter de 27 pour 
100 en 1950 par rapport a 1940. Le niveau du 
revenu national en 1950 doit exceder le niveau 
d'avant guerre de plus de 30 pour 100. Les 
chiffres fixes pour la production industriellc 
globale de toute l'annee 1947 ont ete depasses 
de 3,5 pour 100 et ceux des six premiers mois 
de 1948 de 5 pour 100. Le montant de la pro­
duction globale pour le deuxieme trimestre 
de 1948 a excede celui du deuxieme trimestre 
de 1947 de 24 pour 100. 

Dans le domaine de !'agriculture, les 

28 



had been successfully completed. The in­
crease of arable land for all agricultural crops 
would, according to preliminary data, amount 
to 11 million hectares as between 1948 and 
1947. In areas previously occupied by the 
enemy, overall industrial production had 
increased by 41 per cent as between the second 
quarter of 1948 and the second quarter of 
1947. In particular, pig iron production had 
grown by 39 per cent, steel casting production 
by 51 per cent and rolling mills products by 55 
per cent, electric energy production by 34 per 
cent, cement production by 27 per cent, and 
coal output in the Donetz Basin by 20 per cent. 

One million three hundred thousand square 
metres of housing area had been built up or 
reconstructed in the first six months of 1948, 
and 53,000 dwelling houses had been built in 
village areas. Capital investment in devas­
tated areas amounted to 7,700 million roubles 
during that period. 

Those were some of the basic figures showing 
the results of the efforts of the peoples of the 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics inspired by 
the ideas of socialist co-operation, democracy 
and progress. 

The meeting rose at 1.20 p.m. 

SIXTIETH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Saturday, 9 October 1948, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chile). 

9. Continuation of the consideration of 
chapter II of the report of the Eco­
nomic and Social Council (A/625) 

Before continuing the discussion, the CHAIR­
MAN suggested that the Second Committee 
should meet more frequently, and asked for 
authority to take the necessary steps for that 
purpose. 

It was so agreed. 

The CHAIRMAN announced that the list of 
speakers, who had submitted their names for 
the general debate, was closed, but that 
representatives who desired to reply to certain 
points raised during the general discussion 
could do so when it ended. 

Mr. HYDER (Pakistan) first paid a tribute 
to the Secretariat, for its work in preparing 
documents, under the guidance of the Assistant 
Secretary-General in charge of the Department 
·Of Economic Affairs, containing a complete 
picture of existing economic conditions. 
·Those documents gave a correct analysis of 
the economic situation. He pointed out, 
however, that those economic studies did not 
give sufficient space to Africa. He advocated 
the setting up of a regional commission for 
Africa which should concern itself exclusively 
with the economic development of the African 

29 

semailles de printemps ont ete achevees avec 
succes. Entre 1947 et 1948, l'accroissement 
des terres arables pour toutes les recoltes se 
montera, selon des estimations preliminaires, 
a 11 millions d'hectares. Dans les regions prece­
demment occupees par l'ennemi, la production 
industrielle globale a augmente de 41 pour 100 
entre le deuxieme trimestre de 1947 et le 
deuxieme trimestre de 1948. En particulier, la 
production de fonte a augmente de 39 pour 100, 
la production de l'acier moule de 51 pour 100, 
celle des produits lamines de 55 pour 100, celle 
de l'energie electrique de 34 pour 100, celle du 
ciment de 27 pour 100 et !'extraction du char­
bon dans le bassin du Donetz de 20 pour 100. 

Un million trois cent mille metres carres de 
surface habitable ont ete construits ou recons­
truits dans les six premiers mois de 1948 et 
53.000 maisons d'habitation ont ete baties 
dans les villages. Les investissements de capi­
taux s'elevent a 7.700 millions de roubles 
pendant cette periode. 

Voila quelques-uns des chiffres essentiels 
montrant le resultat des efforts des peuples de 
!'Union des Republiques socialistes sovie­
tiques, inspires par l'idee de la cooperation 
socialiste, de la democratic et du progres. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 20. 

SOIXANTIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le samedi 9 octobre 1948, a 15 heures. 

President: M. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chili~. 

9. Suite de l'examen du chapitre II du 
rapport du Conseil economique et 
social (A/625) 

Avant la reprise de la discussion, le PR:Esr­
DENT propose de reunir plus frequemment Ia 
Deux:ieme Commission et demande a la Com­
mission de l'autoriser a prendre les mesures 
necessaires a cette fin. 

Il en est ainsi decide. 

Le PRESIDENT annonce que la liste des 
orateurs inscrits pour la discussion generale 
est close, mais que les representants qui desi­
rent repondre a certains points souleves au 
cours de la discussion generale pourront lc 
faire a la fin de celle-ci. 

M. HynER (Pakistan) rend d'abord 
hommage au travail du Secretariat, qui, sous 
la direction du Secretaire general adjoint 
charge du Departement des questions econg­
miques, a prepare des documents dans lesquels 
on peut trouver un tableau complet des condi­
tions economiques actuelles. Ces documents 
donnent une analyse correcte de la situation 
economique. ll fait toutefois ressortir que ces 
etudes n'accordent pas assez de place a 
!'Afrique. ll preconise la creation d'une com­
mission regionale pour l' Afrique destinee a 
s'occuper uniquement du developpement ec.-




